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Let us show you
how to have a heart.
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OUR
ORGANISATION

MISSION
Western Province Blood Transfusion Service is a community based
regional health care organisation formed by an association of
voluntary blood donors, dedicated to providing the safest blood
products and efficient service to the community, while operating
at the highest professional and ethical standards and remaining a
viable organisation.

VISION
To maintain a Blood Transfusion Service that is appropriate to
the needs of the South African community; to be prepared for
wider regional and national needs and to provide leadership in
transfusion practice.

VALUES
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HOW TO HAVE A HEART

BE GENEROUS1

(adjective)

['jen(ә )rә s]

PROJECT #1

WP Blood Transfusion Service
donated R20 000 to the University
of Cape Town’s SHAWCO (Student’s
Health and Welfare Centres
Organisation).

fig.1a

fig.1b

fig.1a Recognising a need; fig.1b Making a positive change
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DIRECTORS’
report

Dr GRM Bellairs
CEO/Medical Director

Ms NB Du Toit
CFO/Corporate Services
Director

The 2014/2015 year was a busy and successful one for the
Service and it delivered on its promise to supply sufficient
safe blood to patients in the Western Cape.
The strategic business objectives of Western Province Blood
Transfusion Service (WPBTS) are derived directly from the
analysis of its Mission and Vision statement. In terms of this
statement the organisation must strive to be a viable concern,
while fulfilling its core mandate of supplying sufficient safe
blood to the Western Cape community. It should also ensure
that it is sustainable, thus ensuring its survival for future
generations. These objectives were achieved during the past
financial year.
Strategically this dictates that a sufficient proportion of the
population of the Western Cape donate blood. The donor base
must keep up with the growing demands of the Province and
the population growth while remaining as safe and risk-free
as possible. At the same time the Service’s donor recruitment
and retention practices should remain sustainable and in line
with public expectations.
Another important strategic objective is that WPBTS should
strive to ensure that its internal processes are of the highest
standards of excellence. All internal processes should always
comply with the National Blood Policy, Regulations, and the
Standards of Practice for Blood Transfusion in South Africa.
From these various guidelines, WPBTS compiles its internal
Quality Management System (QMS) and Safety policies. These
policies are aimed at ensuring the safety and efficiency from
the vein of the donor to the vein of the recipient.
Sustainability in general also implies financial stability
in particular. To this end WPBTS must ensure transparent
and efficient financial systems are in place to facilitate
a good partnership with its user-stakeholders. Financial
management must generate sufficient cash resources to
fulfil the core mission of the organisation while minimising
financial risk and ensuring good corporate governance.
The general sustainability of WPBTS demands that it pays
particular attention to the growth and continuous professional
development of its staff. The development of human capital
and retention of scarce skills is critical for ensuring the long
term sustainability of the Service.

Efficiency in terms of this mandate requires that WPBTS
ensures that blood is used responsibly and rationally. This
requires building strategic relationships with regional and
national government and private sectors to ensure optimal
and responsible usage of blood and blood products. Blood
products are a scarce resource for which there is no alternative
in many clinical situations. The Service has an obligation to
promote appropriate blood component usage based on The
Clinical Guidelines for the Use of Blood Products in South
Africa, and to document and monitor adverse reactions
amongst both blood donors and transfusion recipients.
Strategically WPBTS cannot be isolated from the national
perspective. To this end it always seeks to foster positive
relationships with national stakeholders. Both South African
National Blood Service (SANBS) and the National Department
of Health are important stakeholders in the general
environment within which WPBTS operates. Many productive
collaborations have taken place between SANBS and WPBTS
in recent years. WPBTS acknowledges that blood is a national
resource and continues to recognise the national perspective
within the regional context.
Many of the collaborations between WPBTS and SANBS, which
started prior to the reporting period, have been completed.
The 5th Edition of the Clinical Guidelines for the Use of
Blood Products in South Africa was published in early
2014, and distributed free-of-charge to clinical staff in all
hospitals not just in the Western Cape, but also throughout
the country. An educational film entitled “Ordering and
administration of blood” was distributed nationally, targeted
at clinical staff as part of in-service Continuing Professional
Development training. National donor deferral policies
continue to be standardised as far as possible through
collaborations between the medical staff of both Services.
The most important change was the removal of the question
specific to male donors, regarding male-to-male sex. This was
endorsed by the Minister of Health, and both the questions
asked regarding risk behaviour are gender neutral, as are
the deferral periods. The 6th Edition of the Standards of
Practice for Blood Transfusion in South Africa was published
in September 2013 and endorsed by the respective Medical
Directors and Boards of both Services. Clinicians from
both Services continue to work together in producing and
publishing the annual South African National Haemovigilance
Reports.
The relationship between WPBTS and SANBS remains strong
through the above collaborations, as well as the work done
together in preparation for the 33rd South African National
Blood Transfusion (SANBT) Congress of 2015. Most importantly,
the delivery of a National Blood Program requires National
Standards, Clinical Guidelines, donor self-exclusion policies,
similar testing technologies, and the ability and preparedness
to share blood stocks in times of crisis. All of this exists
currently in SA, and despite the significant difference in
respective sizes of WPBTS and SANBS, both organisations are
functionally compatible.
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Western Province Blood Transfusion Service participated in
a meeting with the National Department of Health (NDoH)
in January 2015, where discussions continued (after a long
hiatus between meetings) on the unresolved issues regarding
the National Blood Policy and National Health Act (NHA). The
first strategic issue that remains on the horizon is the Chapter
8 requirement of the National Health Act for a single licensed
Transfusion Service, which is a currently unresolved potential
threat to the Service’s continued existence as a regionally
independent organisation. Another strategic issue is that
of the absence of regulatory bodies such as the National
Blood Committee and National Blood Programme Unit.
Furthermore, the Regulations for Blood and Blood Products
were published in March 2012, but several recommendations
made by WPBTS, SANBS and National Bioproducts Institute
(NBI) were not included and several errors were evident. The
final strategic issue raised at this meeting included the age of
consent to donate blood, and the impact of the rescheduling
of oral iron tables from Schedule 0 to Schedule 1.
Local stakeholder activities include the relationships between
WPBTS and Western Cape Government, and WPBTS and the
private sector. These relationships continue to be strong.
The Laboratory and Blood Services Coordinator for the
Western Cape and the WPBTS worked in close conjunction,
particularly in optimising service levels throughout the
Province, while the Blood Users Committees at the three
major teaching hospitals met on a regular basis to manage
blood product usage and costs at the major hospitals.
The Service once again supported SHAWCO (Student’s Health
and Welfare Centres Organisation) with a donation of R 20
000. Medical equipment and other supplies donated by staff
were supplied to Four Paws, to be used to assist/support
displaced or injured animals following the devastating fire
during March 2015. A blood warmer was donated to the
Neonatal Unit at Tygerberg Hospital to improve transfusion
safety in this particularly vulnerable group of patients.

Operational
Review
GOVERNANCE
Mr Paul Slack has been an active and involved Board
Chairperson throughout the year. Dr Elmin Steyn departed
from the Board in March 2014 after many years of valuable
service, with the vacant position being filled by Dr Andrea
Huggett - this appointment being ratified by the members at
the AGM in September 2014.
Most of the Directors are members of the Institute of
Directors of South Africa, and several attended professional
development activities during the year.

DONOR
Collections and promotions:
Recruitment and retention of blood donors remain on-going
challenges, and the Service continued to explore innovative
solutions such as:
● A digital campaign to grow donor attendance at the 22 Long
Street Blood Donation Clinic, entitled #SaveYourSelfie. 1498
successful “selfie” entries were uploaded onto social media
and 406 new donors registered during the campaign period

20 August 2014 to 8 January 2015, which translates to a
44.83% increase in new donors for the period when compared
to the previous year.
● The “Know your blood type” free blood grouping and donor
registration programme was implemented as a recruitment
tool for new donors and as a strategy to increase group O
blood collections. This is an ongoing recruitment tool at
blood clinics, health and wellness days and shopping centres.
● WP Blood social media presence has grown exceptionally
with Facebook followers increasing from 2197 to 12 098.
● Subsequent to year end, the Service’s new website was
launched. An important enhancement was the reporting of
current blood stock levels by blood group, and by the number
of days’ supply. This will enable donors to assess the urgency
for their next donation.
Blood stocks were maintained at acceptable levels throughout
the year. However, the sustainability of the blood supply
remains a significant challenge for the Service. Improved
average life expectancy, increases in the number of hospital
beds, and consistent population growth in the Western Cape,
continue to drive increased demand for blood products and
blood donations.
The service offered to blood donors continues to be improved.
The oral iron replacement program was expanded to include
all donors in the group most at risk.
Uptake has been beyond expectations. The Service evaluated
non-invasive haemoglobin measuring devices which could
enable donors to avoid having their fingers pricked to assess
their haemoglobin level prior to donation. Unfortunately, the
reliability of the results did not meet expectations, but will
be investigated again in the near future.
Load shedding poses a significant challenge for blood
collection clinics, particularly those at mobile, temporary
sites, where the Service is not able to rely on generator
supply. However, contingency plans were made including the
supply of emergency lights, head lamps, and extra laptop
computers. Furthermore the use of manual methods and
generators at the fixed site and caravan clinics allowed the
clinics to continue as scheduled. Although disruptive, very
few clinics were cancelled due to load shedding. The amount
of blood collected from fixed site clinics has increased as
they continue to offer a blood donation venue entirely at the
donors’ convenience.
Regional Branches:
Events celebrating the achievements of milestone donors
were held at all regional branches.
Two of the three regional branches achieved their blood
collection targets, with the George branch having a small
shortfall. Public relations efforts in the Garden Route area
have been increased and the relationships with potential
communities of blood donors expanded. There appears to be
significant capacity to increase collections from the Garden
Route area.
A new caravan was commissioned at the Worcester branch
in the final quarter and going forward will be used as a tool
to continue to recruit and bleed donors. The Service has
occupied the building in Worcester for 20 years and thanks
to numerous upgrades over this time, it remains an efficient
and comfortable site for activities in this region. However,
the Service will be reassessing the long-term future at the
Paarl Branch site, as the use of this heritage status building
significantly limits upgrades and expansion.
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TECHNICAL REVIEW
Processing and laboratory testing:
In the blood component processing department the manager,
Mr Alan Kirby, retired in June 2014 and was replaced by Ms
Debbie Smith. Updated component separation equipment was
installed - these instruments are used for the separation of the
centrifuged whole blood into the various components such as
red cell concentrate, plasma and platelets. The department
investigated using a different type of blood collection bag
which promises to deliver a higher quality red cell product as
well as improve the yields of platelets, ultimately resulting in
improved safety for the patient. The system was tested and
validated and will be implemented in the next financial year.
The laboratories participated in the evaluation of several
new technologies, attended congresses and workshops,
and implemented modifications to the laboratory area.
Highlights included the installation of new nucleic acid
testing platforms, the assessments of possible replacement
platforms for serology testing for transfusion-transmissible
diseases as well as replacements for the haematology
analyser. DNA genotyping was introduced in the reference
laboratory, and this promises to improve the clinical
management of multitransfused patients. Work continued on
the development of the segment cutting machine, designed to
speed up process flows, and minimise costs through efficient
use of blood grouping platforms. It is anticipated that this will
be commissioned in the 2015/2016 year, most likely at both
WPBTS and SANBS.
The provision of safe blood continues to be a crucial strategic
objective, which was a focus area of the haemovigilance
committee. Residual risk estimates and the trends in the
prevalence of donors found to be positive for transfusiontransmissible diseases confirm that the Service’s multi-layered
blood safety strategy is effective. It is anticipated that the
next increment will be the adoption of pathogen reduction
technology which will initially be applied to platelet products
as these are most at risk of bacterial contamination.
BLOOD BANKS:
WPBTS has fully staffed blood banks in the three teaching
hospitals in Cape Town, as well as at each regional branch. In
addition, WPBTS has a small blood bank at a private hospital
in Somerset West, and 90 emergency blood banks throughout
the Western Cape.
Staffing and staff issues remained a constant challenge
for all the Blood Banks. The ratio of experienced staff to
trainees was not ideal. However, the mentorship programme
introduced at the blood banks is working well and increases
in the workload at the Red Cross Children’s Hospital were
managed by increasing the numbers of staff allocated to this
site from the rotational pool, as well as increasing the night
duty complement.
The Blood Users Committees at all three tertiary level
hospitals met regularly, and according to specific needs at
each hospital. Issues common to all three included blood
usage data, hospital infrastructure, and reporting of blood
transfusion reactions.
Fractionation Plant:
Over the year, the production efficiencies in filling and
filtration have led to less processing losses and batch sizes
of bulk products have grown on average by 5% due to greater
yields achieved.

Fractionation has acquired and is committed to USP Kinetic
turbidimetric LAL as replacement for Rabbit Pyrogen testing.
This accredited device for pyrogenic testing which is now in
the evaluation phase will eventually allow us to move away
from animal testing for final release of products once it has
passed all validations and the Medicines Control Council
(MCC) has accepted the results.
Fractionation has switched to having clean room garments
prepared in a certified clean room facility. This change
has shown benefits to reducing contamination levels in the
sterile production areas and places less risk on the product
evidenced by consistently better in-process sterility results.
In addition to this, the UV light sterilization system sanitizes
all sterile production areas automatically when the plant is
not occupied by staff.
The Plant has also embarked on an outreach programme
assisting countries in Africa who do not have access to
Fractionated products. A senior professor of Transfusion
Medicine from Cairo spent a week within the facility studying
our method of Factor 8 production with the hopes of
establishing a similar operation in Egypt.
Over the last year there has been a growing interest in
the Plant from many countries in Africa with the hope that
production on a similar scale could ultimately enable them to
achieve self-sufficiency of fractionated products.

QUALITY ASSURANCE REVIEW
WPBTS underwent a full accreditation assessment by SANAS
(South African National Accreditation System) in July 2014 and
all sites were visited and thoroughly inspected. The outcome
was positive with the Service maintaining its accreditation
status yet again.
Five additional internal auditors were trained and integrated
into the system and 30 audits were performed throughout
the Service. Audit checklists and reports were streamlined
resulting in a more efficient way of auditing and procedures
were strengthened to ensure that deviations found were
addressed as quickly as possible. A total of 184 validations of
equipment and methods were performed.
WPBTS continued to work with the African Society of Blood
Transfusion (AfSBT) on the step-wise accreditation programme
for Africa and the QA Supervisor, Glynis Bowie, was trained as
an assessor. The QA Manager, Ms Lesley Bust, was invited by
the AfSBT to present a paper at the congress in Zimbabwe.
Safety standards were maintained with a Technilaw five-star
grading and compliance score of 97%.

SUPPORT SERVICES REVIEW
FINANCE DEPARTMENT:
The weighted average tariff increase for the financial year
2014/2015 was 11% which was higher than average CPI for the
financial year (which was 6.07%). The audited statements
indicate a higher than budgeted surplus and maintenance of
healthy cash reserves, which will enable the Service to meet
medium term objectives.
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The Pastel Evolution accounting platform was introduced,
and the Qlikview financial management reporting system
developed, with the following benefits:
● quicker access to financial information (real time) and
reporting;
● improved cash flow management;
● an easier and effective financial audit.
In order to meet International Financial Reporting Standards
the Service analysed the costs of all in-house produced
inventories during the reporting year. This resulted in the
revaluing of in-house produced inventories for prior periods
resulting in restatement of the Annual Financial Statements.
Human Resource Department:
The human resources department managed the following
projects during the reporting year:
● An access control system was installed to improve security
at all sites, and also to prepare for the implementation of a
robust time and attendance system during the 2015/2016
year.
● The individual performance appraisal system for all
Managers and staff was trialled and will be fully implemented
in the 2015/2016 period.
● The job grading review process started towards the end of
the reporting period and will also be completed in 2015.
There were 28 staff who resigned during the year, while 59
new staff were appointed.
Information Technology Department:
The information technology department made considerable
progress in the following areas:
● The network infrastructure for the George, Worcester and
Paarl branches was upgraded from Microwave links to Fibre
cables which provide a more stable and reliable network
connection.
● The Disaster Recovery server room was successfully
commissioned. The live server room is configured to
replicate to the DR server room.
● The blood management server was upgraded and the old
server was moved to the DR server room for replication.
At the same time, the blood management server operating
software was upgraded to the latest version.
● Developed new front ends for the blood banking programs
and the haematology programs.
● Created programs to register potential donors thereby
increasing the donor base from which to recruit potential
donors.
● Automated the import of the results from the Panther/Prism
into the blood banking system.
● Automated the generation of resignation forms using
Papertrail.
● Configured program to import the emergency blood issues
into Pastel Accounting.
Transport Department:
The transport department managed the following projects
during the financial year:
● Driver ID tags were introduced to streamline reporting and
driver identifications. This system assists with all reporting,
making it easy to identify all driving habits and violations. In
addition to this driver score cards were also introduced.
● A new vehicle model, the Honda Mobilio, was added to the
fleet and proved to be versatile for transport of people and
goods.

Maintenance Department:
The maintenance department managed the refurbishment
and upgrades to the administration offices at HQ, the backup server room in the IT Department, the Call Centre &
Promotion offices, as well as the Service’s transport entrance
where biometric scanners and access booms were installed.

LEARNING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT
Considerable investments were made during the year towards
the education and training of our staff, as well as assisting
students who may follow a career in the blood services, both
of which are of paramount importance to the sustainability
of the Service.
The six Bachelors in Higher Science bursary students, who
were the first to qualify with the degree from Cape Peninsula
University of Technology (CPUT), all passed with distinctions.
Ten student technology interns supported by the Service
wrote their HPCSA Board examination in September 2014 and
March 2015 and were all successful.
The Service offered a further six bursaries to BHSc Medical
Laboratory Science students in 2014 and 2015. They will
write their examinations in order to graduate in November
2016. Once they have qualified, they will be required to work
in the Blood Banks for a three year period in order to repay
their bursary fees after which they will remain in service as
regular staff members.
Three laboratory assistants successfully passed their exams
in April 2014.
The Training Department assisted the Cape Peninsula
University of Technology (CPUT) in training 80 of their
students to complete their experiential training in order to
assist them in deciding which discipline to follow, as well as
the PathCare Academy phlebotomy learners with the training
for the Blood Transfusion modules which form part of their
qualification.
The Africa Society for Blood Transfusion Congress held in
Zimbabwe in July 2014 was attended by 11 WPBTS staff
members, many of whom presented their research. One staff
member attended the International Plasma Fractionation
Association congress, and one attended the International
Society for Blood Transfusion annual meeting.
In conclusion, the Directors would like to thank the Board, all
staff members, suppliers and customers for their contributions
to the success of the Service during the year under review.
We repeat our sincere thanks to the blood donor community
for their selfless donations which ultimately save so many
lives.
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HOW TO HAVE A HEART

SHOW 2
COMPASSION

(noun)

[kә m'pa∫(ә )n]

PROJECT #2

WP Blood Transfusion Service
donated a blood warmer to
the Neonatal Unit at Tygerberg
Hospital.

fig.2a

fig.2b

fig.2a Lives depending; fig.2b Warm heart
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GOVERNANCE
report
executive management and ensuring that decisions of a
material and policy nature are in the hands of the Board.
In terms of the Memorandum of Incorporation, the term of
office for non-executive directors is three years, after which
they have to retire by means of rotation. Retiring directors
can be re-elected.

Mr PK Slack
Chairman of the Board

The Board is guided by corporate best practices as contained
in the King Reports on Corporate Governance (King III). These
sound principles are taken into account on a continuous
basis in the decision-making process. During the year under
review the Board once again critically evaluated its role in
providing strategic guidance to the Service and confirmed
as such that it would continue to focus on the material
aspects which could promote the continued sustainability
and growth of the Service.
At WPBTS we define sustainability as follows:
Sustainability refers to the responsible, efficient and
ethical manner in which current generations use all types
of resources to meet their own needs and realise their goals
and aspirations; thereby impacting the socio-economic and
ecological environment in a way that does not compromise,
but enhances the ability of future generations to meet
their own needs and realise their own goals, aspirations
and potential. (Adapted from The Brundtland Commission’s
definition created in 1987).
We understand that all WPBTS team members, including
the Board, are merely custodians of the organisation and
have been given the responsibility of operating sustainably,
in order to hand over the business to future generations in
a better state than it was when we received it from past
generations. We believe that it is critical for our organisation
to have a sustainability-oriented culture, structures and
processes for the governance of sustainability. Key indicators
and material sustainability issues and risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis. It is important to stay abreast of local and
international regulatory and technical developments in the
field of sustainability and to ensure that the management
thereof meets the minimum requirements as provided by
King III.
The Board assumes collective responsibility and
accountability for the strategic direction and performance
of the organisation. The WPBTS Board is comprised of up
to 10 non-executive directors and two executive directors.
Non-executive directors are elected based on a combination
of their custodianship of donor interest and their specialised
individual skills. The Board is responsible for setting the
strategic direction of WPBTS. Annually, the Board considers,
debates and adopts with or without amendments a strategic
plan presented by the executives. Full and effective control
of the WPBTS affairs is retained through monitoring the

I would like to thank my co-directors for their wisdom,
support and guidance during the 2015 financial year.
Exceptional co-operation, diverse thinking and sober
reasoning made us a formidable team. Your contributions
are of great value.
The composition of the Board makes provision for
appropriate and effective decision-making, which ensures
that no individual can exercise undue influence. The
activities of the Board are controlled by the provisions of
the Memorandum of Incorporation.
The primary responsibilities and powers of the Board are as
follows:
● The approval of the strategy and budgets.
● The appointment of executive directors and the
monitoring of the performance of executive directors.
● The custodian of the values and ethical principles of
the Service.
● Effective control over the Service.
● Conscientious risk management and attention to
sustainability issues.
● The consideration of important financial and non-financial
aspects, such as corporate and social responsibilities and
transformation.
Board meetings are held at least four times annually and
relevant agendas and documentation is circulated prior
to the meetings. The Board has established a number of
committees to facilitate efficient decision-making and to
assist the Board in the execution of its duties, powers and
authority. The committees function in a transparent manner
and report to the Board on a regular basis.
At the beginning of the year the Board had five subcommittees:
● Audit Committee
● Remuneration and Nominations Committee
● Risk and Governance Committee
● Finance and IT-Steering Committee
● Social and Ethics Committee
Committee meeting attendance and membership is indicated
in the table on page 12.
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WPBTS Board members are listed below with an indication of their date of joining the Board, as well as their background:
Name

Year Appointed

Area Of Expertise

Mr N Parker

2002

Attorney, Parker Holt Attorneys

Dr G Bellairs

2008

WPBTS CEO and Medical Director

Dr A Bird

2012

Executive leadership, transfusion medicine

Mr D Ndebele

2013

Human Resources Director, Pathcare

Mr P Slack

2004

Chartered Accountant

Ms N du Toit

2012

WPBTS CFO and Corporate Services Director

Prof B Figaji

2006

Education / Management / Engineering

Dr A Huggett

2014

Medical Doctor

Adv D Bosman

2008

Advocate

Dr F Essop

2005

Anaesthetist

Mr R Ramsbottom

2000

Business Management / Chartered Accountant

Mr M Burton

2011

Chartered Accountant

The efficiency and effectiveness of the Board is considered
on an annual basis. I would like to compliment my fellow
Board members on maintaining open, transparent and honest
participation in the execution of our duties.
On behalf of the Board I would like to thank our donors,
personnel, partners, suppliers and the community for
continued support, loyalty and friendship. WPBTS is well
positioned for future growth but without these cornerstones
in our business, success will not be possible.
We believe that the Service can make a contribution to our
country and economy in which we operate by continuing to
build on our current business model. The Service’s core values
of teamwork, caring, being professional, responsible and
committed, position us well for the future. These values will
ensure that WPBTS will be an admired, successful business
that creates jobs, develops the community, provides blood
for the people of our province, and earns the respect and
generates pride in the hearts of our donors and personnel.
I would like to conclude with the words of Brian Tracy, a
well-known American television personality. “Those who
develop the ability to continuously gather new and better
forms of knowledge which can be applied in their lives and
work, will be the future ‘ones who make things happen’ in
our community.”
May WPBTS be a Service which ‘makes things happen’ for the
future and may each one of you strive towards gaining the
knowledge required to realise your dreams for the present
and the future.
Paul Slack
Chairman of the Board

Sub-Committees
1. Audit Committee
The audit committee is required to report in terms of section
94(7)(f) of the Companies Act, Act 71 of 2008 on:
● How the committee carried out its functions;
● The independence of the auditor of the company; and
● Commenting on the financial statements, the accounting
practices and internal control of the company.
The committee considers that it has adequately performed
its duties in terms of its mandate, King III and the Companies
Act 2008, as amended.
In line with the International Financial Reporting Standards
and Corporate Governance, this committee must ensure
Risk Management Oversight and responsible and transparent
assurance processes.
It meets several times a year to review company financial
statements, and monitor the mechanisms of financial
reporting.
Composition
The Audit Committee is comprised of three non-executive
directors. The senior management dealing with the financial
affairs of the company have no voting powers. Four meetings
were held during the year and were also attended by the
auditors, currently Ernst and Young (EY).
Mandate and responsibilities
In terms of its mandate, this Committee is required inter alia
to:
● Review the financial statements of the Service, both
interim and annual.
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● Ensure that the financial statements are prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards.
● Review the accounting policies adopted by the Service and
any changes thereto.
● Consider the going concern principles and reasons for
recommendation to the Board.
● Make recommendations on the appointment of the
external auditors and their fees.
● Evaluate the independence and effectiveness of the
external auditors, consider any non-audit services by such
auditors; and whether the rendering of such services
would substantially affect their independence.
● Agree the annual audit plan and audit budget with External
Auditors.
● Review the effectiveness of management information, the
annual audit and the internal system of controls.
● Monitor compliance with applicable legislation and
regulatory aspects.
● In addition, members of this committee recommend the
payment of the performance bonus which is based on
several key performance indicators.

● Monitoring transformation policies in terms of employment
equity and reporting to the Department of Labour.
● Making recommendations regarding executive directors’
remuneration to the Board.
● Approving annual mandates for salary increases.
● Approving annual bonus payments in terms of preapproved incentive schemes.
● The Committee also recommends the remuneration of nonexecutive directors to the Board. Non-executive directors
are remunerated for their membership of the Board and
Board appointed committees.
The remuneration levels reflect the size and complexity of
the company as well as the time spent in dealing with the
affairs of the company.
Market practices and remuneration surveys are taken into
account in the determination of directors’ remuneration.
The elements of non-executive directors’ remuneration are:
● A monthly retainer.
● A meeting attendance fee.
● Travelling and actual expenses where applicable.

The Committee performed all its duties as set out above.
The external auditors have unlimited access to the
chairperson of the committee and the monthly management
reports received by the executives on day-to-day matters.
The Committee is satisfied that the 2015 audit conducted by
the external auditors was independent and concurs with the
audit report. The auditors’ report is included in the annual
financial statements on page 20.
Mervyn Burton
Chairperson: Audit Committee

2.Remuneration and
Nominations Committee
This committee ensures that the general remuneration
strategy of the organisation is in line with industry standards.
WPBTS continues to provide market-related salaries and
a comprehensive benefits package, enabling us to attract
and retain skilled staff. Wherever and whenever possible,
we strive to appoint demographically representative staff
with the appropriate skill sets. Future enhancements to the
remuneration policy at WPBTS include individual performance
measurement and reward, and further integration of HR and
payroll functions.
Composition
The Remuneration Committee is comprised of four nonexecutive directors and the two executive directors. The
executive management however, is recused from the
meeting during discussions regarding their remuneration.
The Committee had three meetings during the year. Issues
relating to remuneration were however comprehensively
addressed at full board meetings.
Mandate and responsibilities
The Committee is responsible for the following:
● Determining
and
maintaining
the
remuneration
philosophies of the Company.
● Approving and maintaining appropriate human resources
and remuneration policies.
● Executive management succession planning.
● Monitoring the implementation of relevant labour
legislation.

The remuneration of the directors for the year under review
is shown in the table on page 12.
WPBTS’ approach is to set remuneration levels that attract,
retain and motivate the appropriate calibre of directors and
staff.
Brian Figaji
Chair: Remuneration and Nominations Committee

3. Risk and
Governance Committee
The Risk and Governance Committee is tasked with the
identification of potential risk issues for the organisation
and to achieve overall compliance in terms of legal and
governance principles. During the year, the committee
focussed to a large extent on the implications of the new
Companies Act, the King III Code, the Consumer Protection
Act and the National Health Act. The National Health Act’s
requirement for a single licensed transfusion service in South
Africa poses the greatest risk to WPBTS – but this risk is
currently being managed by cooperation with the National
Department of Health (NDoH) and the development of
workable alternatives to the single license, that provide a
comprehensive national blood programme. A comprehensive
risk register was developed during the year, and steps were
taken to mitigate risks wherever possible.
Composition
The Risk Committee comprises of three non-executive
directors and the two executive directors. Two meetings were
held through the year.
Mandate and responsibilities
The Committee assists the Board with the identification,
assessment, evaluation, mitigation and monitoring of actual
and potential risks as they pertain to the Service. These risks
encompass short, medium and long term risks.
Risk taking, in an appropriate manner, is an integral part of
the business. The success of the business depends to a large
extent on optimising the trade-off between risk and reward.
In the normal course of conducting its business, the Service is
exposed to a variety of risks; inter alia financial risk, business
risk, environmental risk and strategic risk. The long term

PAGE 10

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

sustained growth, continued success and the reputation of
the Service are critically important and dependent on the
quality of risk management and good corporate governance.
WPBTS is exposed to and dependant on major fluctuations
in limited international and local fundamentals, e.g. interest
rates and exchange rates.
The following strategic risks have been identified and receive
the necessary management attention on a continuous basis:
● Recipient risk – Inadequate safety of blood products.
● Donor risk – Donor fatigue and donor deferrals can influence
donor availability and blood supply.
● Decrease in sales – Globally the drive is to use blood more
restrictively.
● Single licence for blood transfusion service – The risk of
not being able to sustain operations in line with NHA Sect 8,
resulting in loss of ability to sustain ongoing operations.
Gideon Bosman
Chairman: Risk and Governance Committee

4. Finance and
IT-Steering Committee
Composition
The committee comprises of four non-executive directors,
and two executive directors. Other members are co-opted to
attend meetings when required.
Mandate and responsibilities
Strategic financial matters and investment options are
discussed at the committee and uploaded to the Board for
final decision and implementation.
IT has become strategically critical in recent years and a
strong responsive IT backbone is essential for most of WPBTS’
processes. The IT steering committee has been established to
ensure compliance with the King III code, as well as to ensure
that this important function continues to advance in pace
with operational requirements. Improvements suggested by
an external baseline audit of the IT function at WPBTS have
been budgeted for and are either in progress or completed.
Paul Slack
Chairman: Finance and IT-Steering Committee

5. Social and
Ethics Committee
Composition
The committee comprises of three non-executive directors
and the two executive directors. The Social and Ethics
Committee was formally established in May 2012.

Mandate and responsibilities
The Social and Ethics Committee will guide further
improvements under the broad headings of:
● Social and economic development.
● Good corporate citizenship.
● The environment, health and public safety, and impact of
activities.
● Consumer relationships.
● Labour and employment practices.
● WPBTS requires an internal ethics approval forum for
research protocols; and requests for blood samples and
product samples for third parties.
Arthur Bird
Chairman: Social and Ethics Committee

Financial
Status
The company’s financial status continues to be healthy,
and the position of WPBTS remains favourable in terms of
maintaining an excellent, sustainable transfusion service.
The accumulated surplus will be required by the Service over
the next 2-5 years to fund capital acquisitions and building
expansion. The Board takes final responsibility for approving
the annual budget plan, price increases and salary increases.

Sustainability
In accordance with the Vision and Mission of the organisation,
WPBTS must be sustainable in terms of its resources by
minimising material waste and nurturing broader human
resources, (including donors and patients).
Sustainability encompasses various facets, all of which
are not necessarily obvious. In my opinion good corporate
governance and ethical values are the cornerstones of a
sustainable business.
Add thereto a fit business model with a long term investment
philosophy and proven transformation actions and it should
be possible to hand a sustainable entity down to the next
generation.

Future
Developments
WPBTS has actively participated in the development
of a National Blood Policy and remains committed to a
comprehensive national blood programme. We take seriously
our corporate citizenship in South Africa and continue to
strive to be one of the best medium-sized blood services in
the world; particularly in terms of service delivery, value and
the use of appropriate technologies.
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Director’s meeting attendance and remuneration:
Name
Number of meetings

Board

Audit

Finance & IT

Risk &
Governance

Remuneration
& Nominations

5

4

1

2

3

Remuneration

Non-executive directors
Dr A Bird

4

Adv D Bosman

3

Mr M Burton

5

Dr F Essop

3

Prof B Figaji

4

Mr N Parker

R12 509
1
4

2

R13 568

2

R20 329
R8 534

1

1

3

R16 419

5

3

R16 419

Mr D Ndebele

5

2

R16 419

Mr R Ramsbottom

4

3

Mr P Slack

4

1

Dr A Huggett

3

R15 823
1

2

3

R18 695

1

R6 160

Executive directors
Dr G Bellairs

5

4

1

2

3

R1 973 756

Ms N du Toit

5

4

1

2

3

R1 618 079

HOW TO HAVE A HEART

BE CARING3

(adjective)

PROJECT #3

['keriNG]

fig.3a

fig.3b

WP Blood Transfusion Service
rolled out an iron replacement
programme to protect donors at
risk of iron depletion.

fig.3a Continuously giving back; fig.3b Protection for donors
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FACTS AND
FIGURES
[Period of reporting: 1 April 2014 – 31 March 2015]
DONATIONS REGISTERED AT CLINICS
CAPE PENINSULA

PAARL

101 557

2014/2015

23 133

2014/2015

100 542

2013/2014

21 270

2013/2014

101 265

2012/2013

18 201

2012/2013

WORCESTER

GEORGE

17 659

2014/2015

12 102

2014/2015

16 974

2013/2014

12 011

2013/2014

16 111

2012/2013

11 581

2012/2013

TOTAL PER YEAR
2012/2013

2013/2014

2014/2015

147 953

150 797

154 451

● Donations registered at clinics excludes not bled, insufficient, test only, dry pack, blood grouping, low HB, mailing list donors and
underweight.
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DONOR AND CLINIC INFORMATION
2012/2013

2013/2014

2014/2015

Number of first time donors

15 024

15 482

23 660

Number of donors who donated including new donors

72 703

70 299

71 620

53

21

53

2.03 donations

2.15 donations

2.16 donations

New clinics initiated
Donation frequency of donors

TOTAL UNITS TESTED
2012/2013

2013/2014

2014/2015

Apr

11 573

Apr

12 377

Apr

12 556

May

12 327

May

13 488

May

13 282

Jun

11 619

Jun

11 363

Jun

10 700

Jul

12 071

Jul

13 835

Jul

14 031

Aug

13 566

Aug

12 814

Aug

14 508

Sept 12 535

Sept 11 585

Sept 12 234

Oct

13 398

Oct

14 504

Oct

15 768

Nov

13 251

Nov

13 184

Nov

12 884

Dec

12 852

Dec

12 927

Dec

12 689

Jan

13 756

Jan

13 268

Jan

12 341

Feb

12 193

Feb

12 963

Feb

13 149

Mar

12 077

Mar

12 097

Mar

12 827

Total 151 218

Total 154 405

Total 156 969

● The totals units indicate all donations tested through the analyser. This includes apheresis and autologous units.

CONFIRMED POSITIVE TEST RESULTS
2012/2013
Hepatitis B

Hepatitis C

HIV

Syphilis

2013/2014

2014/2015

103

121

119

4

6

7

49

66

74

74

110

94
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NUMBER OF APHERESIS PLATELETS ISSUED FOR THIS PERIOD
2012/2013

2013/2014

2014/2015

Adult apheresis platelets

3 382

3 715

3 603

Infant apheresis platelets

1 012

889

1 522

2012/2013

2013/2014

2014/2015

Autologous

47

31

29

Designated

45

72

45

Therapeutic

2 011

2 404

2 404

2012/2013

2013/2014

2014/2015

SPECIALISED DONOR SERVICES INFORMATION

ADVERSE TRANSFUSION REACTIONS

Allergic

115

116

82

Febrile

73

82

59

Symptoms due to underlying disorder

22

26

30

Anaphylactic

16

22

17

Hypotensive

2

8

6

Misdirected transfusion

5

2

1

Acute haemolytic reaction

0

1

1

Delayed haemolytic reaction

0

0

0

TRALI

0

0

1

TACO

0

0

0
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BLOOD BANK INFORMATION - ISSUED PRODUCTS
2012/2013

2013/2014

2014/2015

131 931

137 735

140 290

Platelets

4 830

4 787

4 956

Fresh frozen plasma

27 574

26 970

25 238

282

245

174

Emergency blood

8 553

9 684

9 440

After hours requests

56 107

57 062

57 565

Apheresis platelets

4 318

4 419

4 385

Red cell concentrates

Whole blood

●
●
●
●
●

Platelets includes both infant and adult platelets.
Fresh frozen plasma includes both infant and adult fresh frozen plasma.
Emergency blood includes blood issued by Stock Control, as well as those issued from the Blood Banks.
The figures indicate Apheresis platelets only and exclude the pooled donor platelets.
The figures include those of the whole Western Cape region.

FRACTIONATION UNITS SUPPLIED
2012/2013

2013/2014

2014/2015

5 352

10 314

9 559

Factor VIII

3 912

4 599

4 002

Albumin units

30 745

23 388

23 038

Stabilised serum

● Factor VIII production rate is still dependant on the available supply of cryoprecipitate.
● HSA (Albumin) production continues at a consistent level.

QUALITY & SAFETY
2012/2013

2013/2014

2014/2015

SANAS Accreditation status

Full

Full

Full

Technilaw Health and Safety

5
star

5
star

5
star
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EQUITY FIGURES
Once again we monitored and met our equity targets, which form part of our key performance measurement criteria for the awarding
of a performance bonus at WPBTS.
The actual targets set are regularly reviewed and improved upon and our performance in relationship to this is communicated quarterly
to all employees. Currently, 76.16% of our permanent staff comes from the “black” designated group, while 62.70% of our staff are
females.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Resignations

New appointments

2012/2013

2013/2014

2014/2015

28

38

28

50

51

59

2013/2014

2014/2015

Western Cape

WPBTS RACIAL PROFILE COMPARED WITH WESTERN CAPE DEMOGRAPHICS
2012/2013

African / Black

13.9%

12.9%

14.1%

30.1%

Coloured

60.5%

60.8%

61.2%

50.2%

0.8%

0.9%

0.7%

1.3%

24.6%

25.4%

23.8%

18.4%

Indian / Asian

White
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HOW TO HAVE A HEART

BE BENEVOLENT4

(adjective)

[bә’nevәlәnt]

PROJECT #4

WP Blood Transfusion Service
donated medical supplies and
blankets to FOUR PAWS for
animals affected by the Cape Town
mountain fires.

fig.4a

fig.4b

fig.4a Animal rescued from mountain fires; fig.4b Help given
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

WESTERN PROVINCE BLOOD TRANSFUSION SERVICE
Non-Profit Company Incorporated in Terms of the
South African Companies Act 71 of 2008
Registration Number 1943/016692/08

ANNUAL FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
APPROVAL OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The annual financial statements set out on pages 22 to 47
were approved by the board of directors on 20 July 2015 and
are signed on its behalf by:

Mr PK Slack
Chairman

Ms N Du Toit
Director

PAGE 19

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS’ REPORT
Independent Auditors’ Report to the committee members of
WESTERN PROVINCE BLOOD TRANSFUSION SERVICE

Non-Profit Company Incorporated in Terms of the
South African Companies Act 71 of 2008
Registration Number 1943/016692/08

report on the
Financial Statements
We have audited the annual financial statements of Western
Province Blood Transfusion Service set out on pages 22 to
47, which comprise the statement of financial position at 31
March 2015, and the statement of profit or loss, statement
of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and the notes, comprising a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.
Directors’ Responsibility
for the Financial Statements:
The company’s directors are responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of
South Africa, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility:
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

OPINION:
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Service as at 31
March 2015, and its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies
Act of South Africa.
Other Reports Required
by the Companies Act:
As part of our audit of the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2015, we have read the Directors’ Report
and the Company Secretary’s Certificate for the purpose of
identifying whether there are material inconsistencies between
these reports and the audited financial statements. These
reports are the responsibility of the respective preparers.
Based on reading these reports we have not identified material
inconsistencies between these reports and the audited financial
statements. However, we have not audited these reports.

Ernst & Young Inc.
Director: Abdul Majid Cader
Registered Auditor
Chartered Accountant (SA)
20 July 2015

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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DIRECTORS’
report
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Business and Operations
The principal activity of the Western Province Blood
Transfusion Service is the collection, testing, processing and
distribution of blood and certain of its derivatives.

CORPORATE STRUCTURE
Western Province Blood Transfusion Service is an association
not for gain incorporated in 1943 in terms of Section 21 of
the previous Companies Act, 1973. The company continues
to exist and in terms of Schedule Transitional Arrangement
of the Companies Act, 2008. The company is deemed to have
been incorporated and registered under Section 8 of the said
Act as a non-profit company, with at least one of its objects
being a public benefit; or a cultural or social activities, or
communal or group interests.

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR
The results of operations for the year are set out in the
attached income statement which reflects a surplus of R9.2
million for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: R5.9 million).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
In keeping with the Western Province Blood Transfusion
Service’s mission statement, the company continues investing
in technical equipment to maintain its standards. Expected
total capital expenditure for the next year is R18.9 million.

As at 1 October 2014, the date of the last employment
equity submission, the Service employed 542 permanent and
16 casual/temporary employees. As at the date of the last
submission, 76% of permanent employees are from the black
designated group and 62% are female. Of the 18 employees
in management, 39% are from the black designated group and
55% are female.

NATIONAL BLOOD
TRANSFUSION LICENCE
Section 53 of the National Health Act was signed by the Office
of the Presidency in June 2009. The Act makes provision for
a single licence for a single blood transfusion service in South
Africa.
Draft regulations for blood and blood products were published
for comment during 2011. SANBS, NBI and WPBTS submitted
recommendations in June 2011. The regulations published in
early 2012 did not include several of our recommendations,
and a response was subsequently sent to the National
Department of Health. Official feedback is awaited.
Legal opinion remains that the Act cannot be currently
enforced, and that WPBTS is currently operating legally based
on existing licensing under the Human Tissues Act.
WPBTS continues to cooperate with SANBS and the National
Department of Health and remains committed to a solution
that best serves regional and national blood transfusion
requirements.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT
TO THE YEAR END

DIRECTORS AND SECRETARY
Particulars of the present directors and secretary are given
on page 01.

EMPLOYMENT EQUITY
The employment equity plan was originally developed in
consultation with Protusa and is currently being monitored
in consultation with PSA, the Union which now represents the
majority of the workforce.
The action over the past three years has focused on maintaining
or improving the ratios which have been achieved.

No event or circumstance has occurred since the year end
which has a significant impact on these financial statements.

COMPANY SECRETARY’S
CERTIFICATE
In my capacity as Company Secretary, I hereby certify, in
terms of the Companies Act, that for the period ended 31
March 2015, the company has lodged with the Registrar
of Companies all such returns as are required of a private
company in terms of this Act, and that all such returns are,
to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, correct and up
to date.

Imtiaz Kaprey
20 July 2015
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Statement of
Financial Position
AS AT 31 MARCH 2015

Note

Restated
2014
R

2015
R

Restated
2013
R

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment

8

100 583 040

96 831 951

97 225 079

Inventory

9

48 767 789

41 901 051

29 603 994

Trade and other receivables

10

37 777 724

38 157 131

33 210 765

Cash and cash equivalents

11

42 956 650

38 163 551

45 861 442

135 327

-

-

129 637 490

118 221 733

108 676 201

230 220 530

215 053 684

205 901 280

126 696 856

117 678 679

112 586 967

Current Assets

FEC asset

21.4

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Accumulated funds
Revaluation reserve

12

40 676 973

40 778 112

40 778 112

Non-distributable reserves

13

2 296 734

2 354 007

2 384 401

Product liability reserve

14

6 101 005

5 799 412

5 000 000

175 771 568

166 610 210

160 749 480

1 926 000

1 959 000

1 993 000

-

1 116 066

-

Non-current liabilities
Post-retirement medical benefits

20

Current liabilities
FEC liability

21.4

Trade and other payables

15

30 035 527

31 003 526

23 708 245

Provisions

16

22 487 435

14 364 882

19 450 555

52 522 962

46 484 474

43 158 800

230 220 530

215 053 684

205 901 280

Total equity and liabilities
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Statement of
Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31 March 2015
Note

Restated
2014
R

2015
R

TURNOVER

2

312 117 879

276 080 143

COST OF SALES

7

116 080 989

101 542 046

Collections

30 334 061

26 156 820

Testing

47 980 645

42 077 689

Product costs

37 766 283

33 307 537

196 036 890

174 538 097

10 873 619

6 486 951

GROSS SURPLUS

INCOME
Interest received
- bank deposits

2

2 063 282

1 670 627

- amortisation of debtors

2

3 551 375

3 117 750

1 134 095

-

-

132

Realised gains on derivative financial instruments

963 870

-

Fair value of FEC asset – unrealised gain

135 327

-

-

184 227

Net surplus and scrapping on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Realised gains on forex

Unrealised gains on foreign exchange
Sundry income

3

2 419 421

836 407

Grant income

4

235 756

357 856

13(a)

68 900

60 012

14

301 593

259 940

197 749 151

175 164 318

Professional development fund income
Product liability income

EXPENSES
Personnel

5

151 923 828

132 745 612

Administration

6

26 714 979

24 446 900

-

225 494

1 367 761

1 761 531

290 092

-

-

1 116 066

1 504

7 986

7 954 338

6 403 529

9 370 476

8 366 794

126 173

90 406

9 161 358

5 860 730

Net loss and scrapping on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Realised losses on foreign exchange
Unrealised losses on foreign exchange
Fair value of FEC liability – unrealised loss
Finance costs

17

Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation
Professional development fund expense

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR

8
13(a)

PAGE 23

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

Statement of
Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Note
Balance at 31 March 2013
as previously reported
Prior period error

22

Balance at 31 March 2013 restated

Nondistributable
reserves
R

Product
liability
reserve
R

Revaluation
reserve
R

Accumulated
funds
R

2 384 401

40 778 112

5 000 000

118 619 261

166 781 774

-

-

-

(6 032 294)

(6 032 294)

2 384 401

40 778 112

5 000 000

112 586 967

160 749 480

5 860 730

5 860 730

30 394

-

Surplus for the year
Transfer from non-distributable reserve

13(a)

Transfer to product liability reserve

Surplus for the year
Transfer from non-distributable reserve

(30 394)

14

Balance at 31 March 2014 restated

13(a)

Total
R

-

799 412

(799 412)

-

2 354 007

40 778 112

5 799 412

117 678 679

166 610 210

-

-

-

9 161 358

9 161 358

(57 273)

-

-

57 273

-

Transfer from revaluation reserve

12

-

(101 139)

-

101 139

-

Transfer to product liability reserve

14

-

-

301 593

(301 593)

-

2 296 734

40 676 973

6 101 005

126 696 856

175 771 568

Balance at 31 March 2015

Statement of
Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2015
Note

2015
R

Restated
2014
R

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated by operations

(i)

Interest received
Working capital movements

(ii)

Cash generated by operating activities
Finance costs
Net cash inflow from operating activities

18 622 746

5 669 020

3 551 375

4 788 377

(7 455 330)

(9 948 142)

14 718 791

509 255

(1 504)

(7 986)

14 717 287

501 269

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

(iii)

(14 420 832)

(9 247 047)

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment

(iv)

2 433 362

1 047 887

2 063 282

-

(9 924 188)

(8 199 160)

4 793 099

(7 697 891)

Interest received
Net cash outflow from investing activities
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents for the year
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

(v)

38 163 551

45 861 442

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

(v)

42 956 650

38 163 551
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Notes to the Statement
of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2015
Restated
2014
R

2015
R
(i)

Cash generated by operations
Surplus for the year

9 161 358

5 860 730

Finance costs

1 504

7 986

Depreciation

9 370 476

8 366 794

(33 000)

(34 000)

Surplus on disposal of property, plant and equipment

(1 134 095)

225 494

Interest received

(5 614 657)

(4 788 377)

Movement in FEC asset/liability

(1 251 393)

1 116 066

8 122 553

(5 085 673)

18 622 746

5 669 020

(6 866 738)

(12 297 057)

379 407

(4 946 366)

(967 999)

7 295 281

(7 455 330)

(9 948 142)

Technical equipment

7 997 961

4 949 186

Office furniture and equipment

2 041 490

2 206 415

Motor vehicles

4 381 381

2 091 446

14 420 832

9 247 047

Book value of assets disposed of

1 299 267

1 273 381

Surplus/(loss) on disposal

1 134 095

(225 494)

2 433 362

1 047 887

42 956 650

38 163 551

Adjustment for:

Post-retirement medical benefits

Movement in provisions

(ii)

Working capital movements
Inventory
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Cash and cash equivalents comprise
Cash at bank and on hand
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Notes to the
Financial Statements
1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.1
Basis of preparation:
The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015
are prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).
The company’s presentation currency is South African Rands.
1.2
Property, plant and equipment:
Plant, technical equipment, motor vehicles and office
furniture & equipment are stated at cost and are depreciated
on a straight line basis at rates considered appropriate to
write down each asset to its estimated residual value over the
term of its expected useful life at the following rates:
Plant		
Technical equipment
Motor vehicles
- Administration
				
- Service
				
Office furniture and equipment

3,33% - 20% per annum
2,56% -25%% per annum
16,67% - 25% with
20% residual value
16.67% with
10% residual value
4,17% - 33,33% per annum

Owner-occupied property is stated at revalued amount and
is depreciated on the straight line basis at rates considered
appropriate to write down each asset to its estimated
residual value over the term of its expected useful life.
Property is revalued externally on the net replacement basis
every three years at open market value. Any surplus on
valuation, in excess of net book value, is transferred directly
to a revaluation reserve. Deficits on revaluation are charged
directly against the non-distributable reserve only to the
extent that the decrease does not exceed the amount held in
the non-distributable reserve in respect of that same asset.
Any balance on the revaluation reserve relating to disposed
property is transferred to accumulated funds and not as
depreciated.
Buildings are depreciated at 2%. Land is not depreciated.
Surpluses and losses on disposal of property, plant and
equipment are recorded in the statement of profit or loss.
The carrying values of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be
recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the
carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount,
the assets or cash-generating units are written down to their
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of property,
plant and equipment is the greater of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
methods are reviewed at each year end with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

1.4
PROVISIONS:
Provisions are recognised where the Service has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event,
a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
1.5
INVENTORY:
Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.
Cost is determined as follows:
● Blood packs, accessories, packaging materials, filtration
stocks, chemicals, reagents, testing kits, raw materials and
consumables on the weighted average cost basis.
● Blood stocks, fractionated plasma, in process products and
finished goods at a standard cost.
● Obsolete or slow moving inventory is identified and provision
made where appropriate.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
1.6
REVENUE RECOGNITION:
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Service and the revenue
can be reliably measured, regardless of when payment is
being made.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents the amounts receivable
for goods and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of trade discounts and volume rebates, and
value added tax.
Sales of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods.
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the
following conditions have been satisfied:
● the Service has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;
● the Service retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership
nor effective control over the goods sold;
● it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Service; and
● the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
Finance income
Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective
interest rate method.
Project specific funding including Grant income
Project specific funding including Grant income is recognised
on receipt or when the Service becomes entitled to it. These
funds are received for specific purposes and require WPBTS
to comply with specific conditions attached to the funding.

1.3
LEASES:
Operating lease payments are recognised as an operating
expense in the statement of profit or loss on a systematic
basis representative of the Service’s benefit.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.7

RETIREMENT BENEFITS:

Defined contribution and benefit plans
The Service provides retirement benefits for its employees
through a defined contribution plan.
Contributions by the Service to the defined contribution plan
are recognised as an expense in the year in which the related
services are rendered by employees.
Post-retirement medical benefits
The cost arising in respect of post-retirement medical aid
benefits is charged to profit or loss as incurred. The Service
has an obligation to provide certain post-retirement medical
aid benefits to certain employees and pensioners. The present
value of future medical aid subsidies for past service is
actuarially determined in accordance with IAS 19 – Employee
benefits. The cost of provided benefits under the plan is
determined using the projected unit credit valuation method.
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately and are
taken directly to other comprehensive income in the year in
which they arose. Any curtailment benefits or settlement
amounts are recognised against income as incurred.
1.8
Significant accounting judgEments,
		estimates and assumptions:
Judgements
In the process of applying the Service accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.
Depreciation rates and useful life
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight
line basis over the expected useful lives of the various classes
of assets, after taking into account residual values.
Estimation and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.
Impairment of financial assets
An allowance for the impairment loss is made against trade
receivable accounts that in the estimation of management
may be impaired. The impairment is assessed monthly with
a detailed review of balances conducted at the reporting
date. Determining the recoverability of an account involves
estimation as to the likely financial condition of the customer
and their ability to make payment.
Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying value of the company’s assets is reviewed at each
statement of financial position date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less costs
to sell and the value in use. An impairment loss is recognised
whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cashgenerating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

1.9

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:

Classification
The Service classifies its financial instruments into the
following categories:
● Financial assets or liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss
● Loans and receivables/loans and borrowings
Classification depends on the purpose for which the financial
instruments were obtained/incurred and takes place at initial
recognition.
Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, AFS financial
assets, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial assets are
recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset.
Subsequent measurement
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value presented as finance costs (negative net
changes in fair value) or finance income (positive net changes
in fair value) in the statement of profit or loss.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment.
Impairment of financial assets
At each reporting date the company assesses all financial
assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss,
to determine whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets has been impaired.
For amounts due to the company, significant difficulties of
the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
and default of payments are all considered indicators of
impairment.
Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in
the financial asset’s recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying
amount of the financial asset at the date that the impairment
is reversed shall not exceed what the carrying amount would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial instruments are
measured as follows:

Financial assets other than those at fair value through
profit and loss are assessed for indicators of impairment at
each statement of financial position date. Financial assets
are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the investment have been impacted.

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are recognised and carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method
less an allowance for impairment. Provision is made when
there is objective evidence that the Service will not be able
to collect the debts. The amounts of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. Bad
debts are recognised in profit or loss when identified.

For all financial assets evidence of impairment could include:
● significant financial difficulty of the issue or counterparty;
or
● default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or
● it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.
For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a
collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the company’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in
the portfolio past the average credit year, as well as observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate
with default on receivables.
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectable, it
is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.
Derecognition
The company derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the company neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the company recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts
it may have to pay. If the company retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the company continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash in the statement of financial position
comprise cash at banks and on hand and short term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less. For the
purposes of the cash flow statement, bank balances and cash
consists of cash and cash equivalents as defined above. These
are initially and subsequently recorded at fair value.
Trade and other payables
After initial recognition, trade payables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.
Foreign currency transactions
A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial
recognition in Rands, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the spot exchange rate between currency and the
foreign currency at the date of the transaction.
At each reporting date:
● Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the
closing rate.
● Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction; and
● Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at
the date when the fair value was determined.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items or on translating monetary items at rates different from
those at which they were translated on initial recognition
during the period or in previous annual financial statements
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.
1.10 Translation of foreign currencies:
Cash flows arising from transactions in a foreign currency
are recorded in Rands by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate between the Rand and the foreign
currency at the date of the cash flow.
Exchange gains/losses on derivative financial instruments
represent the difference between what the Service would
have paid for foreign currency at spot rates versus the
exchange rates contracted for using Forward Exchange
Contracts (FEC’s).
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.11

New Standards and Interpretations:

1.11.1 Standards and interpretations effective
		
and adopted in the current year
In the current year, the company has adopted the following
standards and interpretations that are effective for the
current financial year and that are relevant to its operations:
● Amendment to IAS 36: Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets
The amendment to IAS 36 Impairment of Assets now
require:
+ Disclosures to be made to all assets which have been
		 impaired, as opposed to only material impairments,
+ The disclosure of each impaired asset’s recoverable
		 amount, and
+ Certain disclosures for impaired assets whose recoverable
		 amount is fair value less costs to sell in line with the
		 requirements of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement.
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning
on or after 1 January 2014.
The company has adopted the amendment for the first
time in the 2015 audited financial statements.

● Amendment to IAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions
The amendment relates to contributions received from
employees or third parties for defined benefit plans. These
contributions could either be discretionary or set out in
the formal terms of the plan.
If they are discretionary then they reduce the service cost.
Those which are set out in the formal terms of the plan
are either linked to service or not. When they are not linked
to service then the contributions affect the remeasurement.
When they are linked to service and to the number of years
of service, they reduce the service cost by being attributed
to the periods of service. If they are linked to service but
not to the number of years’ service then they either
reduce the service cost by being attributed to the periods
of service or they reduce the service cost in the period in
which the related service is rendered.
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning
on or after 01 July 2014.
The company expects to adopt the amendment for the
first time in the 2016 audited financial statements.
It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material
impact on the company’s audited financial statements.

The impact of the amendment is not material.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning
on or after 1 January 2014.

● Amendment to IFRS 13: Fair Value Measurement: Annual
improvements project
The amendment clarifies that references to financial
assets and financial liabilities in paragraphs 48–51 and 53–
56 should be read as applying to all contracts within the
scope of, and accounted for in accordance with, IAS 39
or IFRS 9, regardless of whether they meet the definitions
of financial assets or financial liabilities in IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation.

The company has adopted the amendment for the first
time in the 2015 audited financial statements.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning
on or after 01 July 2014.

The impact of the amendment is not material.

The company expects to adopt the amendment for the
first time in the 2016 audited financial statements.

● Amendment to IAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities
Clarification of certain aspects concerning the
requirements for offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities.

● Amendment to IAS 39: Novation and Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting
The amendment provides guidance on whether an entity is
required to discontinue hedging when the derivatives
which are designated hedging instruments are novated to
a central counterparty.
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning
on or after 1 January 2014.
The company has adopted the amendment for the first
time in the 2015 audited financial statements.
The impact of the amendment is not material.
1.11.2 Standards and Interpretations not yet effective
The company has chosen not to early adopt the following
standards and interpretations, which have been published
and are mandatory for the company’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2015 or later periods.

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material
impact on the company’s audited financial statements.
● Amendment to IFRS 7: Financial Instruments:
Disclosures: Annual Improvements project
The amendment provides additional guidance regarding
transfers with continuing involvement. Specifically, it
provides that cash flows exclude cash collected which
must be remitted to a transferee. It also provides that
when an entity transfers a financial asset but retains the
right to service the asset for a fee, that the entity should
apply the existing guidance to consider whether it has
continuing involvement in the asset.
The effective date of the company is for years beginning
on or after 01 January 2016.
The company expects to adopt the amendment for the
first time in the 2017 audited financial statements.
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1.11.2 Standards and Interpretations not yet effective (continued)
It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material
impact on the company’s audited financial statements.
● Disclosure Initiative: Amendment to IAS 1: Presentation
of Financial Statements
The amendment provides new requirements when an
entity presents subtotals in addition to those required
by IAS 1 in its audited financial statements. It also provides
amended guidance concerning the order of presentation
of the notes in the audited financial statements, as well
as guidance for identifying which accounting policies
should be included. It further clarifies that an entity’s share
of comprehensive income of an associate or joint venture
under the equity method shall be presented separately into
its share of items that a) will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss and b) that will be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss.
The effective date of the company is for years beginning
on or after 01 January 2016.
The company expects to adopt the amendment for the
first time in the 2017 audited financial statements.
It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material
impact on the company’s audited financial statements.
● Amendment to IAS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment:
Annual improvements project
The amendment adjusts the option to proportionately
restate accumulated depreciation when an item of
property, plant and equipment is revalued. Instead,
the gross carrying amount is to be adjusted in a manner
consistent with the revaluation of the carrying amount.
The accumulated depreciation is then adjusted as the
difference between the gross and net carrying amount.
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning
on or after 01 July 2014.
The company expects to adopt the amendment for the
first time in the 2016 audited financial statements.
It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material
impact on the company’s audited financial statements.
● IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 introduced new
requirements for the classification and measurements of
financial assets. IFRS 9 was subsequently amended in
October 2010 to include requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and in November 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting.
Another revised version of IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014
mainly to include:
+ impairment requirements for financial assets, and
+ limited amendments to the classification and
		 measurement requirements by introducing a “fair value
		 through other comprehensive income” (FVTOCI)
		measurement category for certain simple debt
		instruments.

Key requirements of IFRS 9:
+ All recognised financial assets that are within the
		 scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
		 Measurement are required to be subsequently measured
		 at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
		 investments that are held within a business model
		 whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
		 and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
		 payments of principal and interest on the outstanding
		 principal are generally measured at amortised cost at
		 the end of subsequent reporting periods. Debt
		 instruments that are held within a business model whose
		 objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
		 flows and selling financial assets, and that have
		 contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
		 specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
		 of principal and interest on outstanding principal, are
		 measured at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity
		 investments are measured at fair value at the end
		 of subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under
		 IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
		 to present subsequent changes in the fair value of
		 an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
		 other comprehensive income with only dividend income
		 generally recognised in profit or loss.
+ With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
		 designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
		 IFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
		 fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
		 to changes in the credit risk of the liability is presented
		 in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
		 of the effect of the changes of the liability’s credit
		 risk in other comprehensive income would create
		 or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
		 Under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in fair
		 value of a financial liability designated as at fair value
		 through profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.
+
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under IAS 39.
The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. It is
therefore no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.

+ The new general hedge accounting requirements retain
		 the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms
		 currently available in IAS 39. Under IFRS 9, greater
		 flexibility has been introduced to the types of
		 transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
		 broadening the types of instruments that qualify for
		 hedging instruments and the types of risk components
		 of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge
		 accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has been
		 replaced with the principal of an “economic
		relationship”. Retrospective assessment of hedge
		 effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced
		 disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
		 management activities have also been introduced.

PAGE 30

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/2015

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.11.2 Standards and Interpretations not yet effective (continued)
		 The effective date of the standard is for years beginning
		 on or after 01 January 2018.

		 The principles in IFRS 15 will be applied using a
		 five-step model:

		 The company expects to adopt the standard for the first
		 time in the 2019 audited financial statements.

		1. Identify the contract(s) with a customer
		2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract
		3. Determine the transaction price
		4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance
			 obligations in the contract
		5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
			performance obligation

		 It is unlikely that the standard will have a material
		 impact on the company’s audited financial statements.
1.11.3 Standards and Interpretations
		
not yet effective (continued)
● Key requirements of IFRS 15
+ IFRS 15 replaces all existing revenue requirements in
		 IFRS (IAS 11 Construction Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue, IFRIC
		 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 15 Agreements for
		 the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets
		 from Customers and SIC 31 Revenue – Barter Transactions
		 Involving Advertising Services) and applies to all revenue
		 arising from contracts with customers. It also provides
		 a model for the recognition and measurement of disposal
		 of certain non-financial assets including property,
		 equipment and intangible assets.
+
		
		
		
		
		

The standard outlines the principles an entity must
apply to measure and recognise revenue. The core
principle is that an entity will recognise revenue at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer.

		
		
		
		

The standard requires entities to exercise judgement,
taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and
circumstances when applying each step of the model to
contracts with their customers.

		 The standard also specifies how to account for the
		 incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs
		 directly related to fulfilling a contract.
		
		
		
		
		

Application guidance is provided in IFRS 15 to assist
entities in applying its requirements to certain common
arrangements, including licences, warranties, rights
of return, principal-versus-agent considerations,
options for additional goods or services and breakage.

		 The effective date of the standard is for years beginning
		 on or after 01 January 2017.
		 The company expects to adopt the standard for the first
		 time in the 2018 audited financial statements.
		 It is unlikely that the standard will have a material
		 impact on the company’s audited financial statements.

2. Revenue
2015
R
Turnover

2014
R
312 117 879

276 080 143

- bank deposits

2 063 282

1 670 627

- amortisation of debtors

3 551 375

3 117 750

317 732 536

280 868 520

Interest received

Turnover, which is stated net of value added tax, represents amounts invoiced to third parties. It is attributable to the collection,
processing and distribution of blood and certain of its derivatives.
The amortised cost of trade and other receivables is measured at fair value on initial recognition date plus the cumulative amortisation
using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset. The finance income effect of applying the effective interest rate method amounts to R3 551 375 (2014: R3
117 750).
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3. SUNDRY INCOME
Restated
2014
R

2015
R
Discount on technical equipment
Other income

1 663 673

-

755 748

836 407

2 419 421

836 407

4. PROJECT SPECIFIC FUNDING
INCLUDING GRANT INCOME
Grant Income
Grant income from the Health and Welfare SETA (HWSETA) is received for the purpose of skills development and training and is
recognised on receipt.

5. PERSONNEL COSTS
Restated
2014
R

2015
R
Staff costs
- salaries and wages

114 251 723

105 434 631

- contributions to retirement fund

13 104 680

12 028 670

- contributions to medical aids

10 885 384

9 657 368

7 205 340

-

797 501

609 399

1 095 220

868 814

847 265

804 340

144 881

151 911

2 970 195

2 797 927

353 445

331 062

67 547

61 490

200 647

-

151 923 828

132 745 612

- bonuses
- staff canteen costs
- staff uniform and protective clothing
- other staff costs
Directors’ emoluments
- non-executive directors’ fees
- salaries
- contributions to retirement fund
- medical aid contributions
- bonuses

Included in personnel costs above is the post-retirement medical benefit expense (see note 20 for further information)

Average number of employees

534

522
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6. ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
Restated
2014
R

2015
R
Administration expenses include:
Auditor’s remuneration

419 630

389 545

- audit fee provision

381 600

360 000

38 030

29 545

5 244

4 244

544 902

411 531

1 075 852

678 960

- under provision previous year
Other
Rent
- buildings
- equipment

7. COST OF SALES
Restated
2014
R

2015
R
Cost of inventories sold

116 080 989

101 542 046

Cost of sales includes the historical costs of inventory expensed during the year.
Refer to note 22 for disclosure relating to correction of error.

8. PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT

2015

(At valuation)
Land and
buildings
R

Technical
equipment
R

Office
furniture and
equipment
R

Motor
vehicles
R

Total
R

Beginning of year
- Cost
-Accumulated depreciation
- Net book value

52 818 969

50 683 778

9 689 519

20 100 484

133 292 750

(309 880)

(24 936 731)

(3 534 907)

(7 679 281)

(36 460 799)

52 509 089

25 747 047

6 154 612

12 421 203

96 831 951

-

7 997 962

2 041 490

4 381 380

14 420 832

(101 139)

(187 333)

(118 225)

(892 570)

(1 299 267)

(31 923)

(5 106 676)

(1 218 185)

(3 013 692)

(9 370 476)

52 376 027

28 451 000

6 859 692

12 896 321

100 583 040

52 717 830

56 607 906

10 967 095

22 094 752

142 387 583

(341 803)

(28 156 906)

(4 107 403)

(9 198 431)

(41 804 543)

52 376 027

28 451 000

6 859 692

12 896 321

100 583 040

Current year movements
- Additions
- Disposals at net book value
- Depreciation
Balance at end of year
Made up as follows:
- Cost
-Accumulated depreciation
- Net book value

The estimated remaining useful lives of assets were re-evaluated during the financial year. This was done to more accurately reflect the pattern of
economic consumption of the assets being used by the organisation.
This change in accounting estimate resulted in a decrease in depreciation amounting to R1 011 270.
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8. PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

2014

(At valuation)
Land and
buildings
R

Technical
equipment
R

Office
furniture and
equipment
R

Motor
vehicles
R

Total
R

Beginning of year
- Cost

52 818 969

51 189 320

8 452 179

19 857 581

132 318 049

(277 957)

(24 878 302)

(3 861 376)

(6 075 335)

(35 092 970)

52 541 012

26 311 018

4 590 803

13 782 246

97 225 079

- Additions

-

4 949 186

2 206 415

2 091 446

9 247 047

- Disposals at net book value

-

(737 672)

(33 806)

(501 903)

(1 273 381)

(31 923)

(4 775 485)

(608 800)

(2 950 586)

(8 366 794)

52 509 089

25 747 047

6 154 612

12 421 203

96 831 951

52 818 969

50 683 778

9 689 519

20 100 484

133 292 750

(309 880)

(24 936 731)

(3 534 907)

(7 679 281)

(36 460 799)

52 509 089

25 747 047

6 154 612

12 421 203

96 831 951

-Accumulated depreciation
- Net book value
Current year movements

- Depreciation
Balance at end of year
Made up as follows:
- Cost
-Accumulated depreciation
- Net book value

Land and buildings consist of:
(i) Beaconvale
A factory situated at Connaught Road, Beaconvale, Parow,
erected on freehold erven 12364, 12365 and 12367 (in extent
2578 square metres) in the Municipality of Parow, acquired
on May 29 1986, under Deed of Transfer No T20026/86. 595
square metres of erf 12365 was sold in July 2014.

(iv) George
An office building situated at Courtenay Street, George,
Sections 4,9,10 and 11 of Sectional Plan No 55217/93
of Medical Centre (in extent 354 square metres) in the
Municipality of George, acquired on June 28 1993, under
Deed of Transfer No T10014/93.

(ii) Pinelands
An office block situated in Old Mill Road, Pinelands, erected
on remainder of freehold erf 24179, Cape Town at Maitland
(in extent 1,3701 hectares) in the Municipality of Pinelands,
acquired on July 14 1988, under Deed of Transfer No
T39826/88.

(v) Worcester
An office building situated at 26 Napier Street, Worcester,
erected on freehold Erf 4326, Worcester (in extent 1736
square metres) in the Municipality and Division of Worcester,
acquired on June 10 1994, under Deed of Transfer No
T38986/94.

(iii) Paarl
An office building situated at 263 Main Road, Paarl, erected
on remainder of freehold erf 15375 (in extent 1193 square
metres) in the Municipality of Paarl, acquired on August 12
1992, under Deed of Transfer No T50274/92.
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8. PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
The cost of the properties comprises:
Acquired in

Acquisition
cost

Improvements
since
acquisition

2015

2014

Beaconvale

May 1986

500 000

977 179

1 477 179

1 477 179

Pinelands

July 1988

2 811 236

4 989 753

7 800 989

7 800 989

August 1992

372 633

348 935

721 568

721 568

George

June 1993

160 200

234 979

395 179

395 179

Worcester

June 1994

505 697

1 140 245

1 645 942

1 645 942

4 349 766

7 691 091

12 040 857

12 040 857

Revaluation surplus

40 676 973

4 0 778 112

Total valuation at cost

52 717 830

52 818 969

Paarl

Total cost

2015
R

2014
R

The properties were valued at:
Beaconvale

11 225 000

11 225 000

Pinelands

31 370 000

31 370 000

Paarl

2 975 000

2 975 000

George

2 400 000

2 400 000

Worcester

3 880 000

3 880 000

51 850 000

51 850 000

Additions net of depreciation since last valuation date 31 March 2013

627 166

659 089

Disposals net of depreciation since last valuation date 31 March 2013

(101 139)
52 376 027

52 509 089

The properties were independently valued on an open market basis, as at 31 March 2013 by A R Gibbons, AEI (Zim), FIV (SA),
Professional Valuer.
Refer to Note 24 for the detail of the fair value information on the revalued land and buildings.
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9. INVENTORY
2015
R

Restated
2014
R

Raw materials – at lower of cost and net realisable value

16 193 930

16 775 517

Work in progress – at standard cost

10 938 650

9 956 859

7 749 957

5 285 259

13 885 252

9 883 416

48 767 789

41 901 051

Finished goods – at lower of cost and net realisable value
Consumables – at lower of cost and net realisable value

During 2015, an amount of R1 189 621 (2014: R2 156 602) was recognised as an expense for inventories carried at net realisable value.
This is recognised in cost of sales.
Refer to Note 22 for disclosure relating to correction of error.

10. TRADE AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES
2015
R

2014
R

Gross trade receivables

41 329 989

40 712 544

Impairment of trade debtors

(6 764 402)

(5 575 419)

Net trade receivables

34 565 587

35 137 125

Other receivables*

1 863 333

1 509 085

Deposits paid to suppliers

1 348 804

1 510 921

37 777 724

38 157 131

Opening balance

5 575 419

6 074 705

Charge for the year

2 045 027

599 712

Amounts written off

(856 044)

(1 098 998)

Closing balance

6 764 402

5 575 419

Movements in the provision for impairment of debtors:

On 31 March 2015, the analysis of trade receivables net of impairment is as follows:
Current
R

30 days
R

60 days
R

90 days
R

120 days
R

150
plus days
R

Total
R

2015

22 262 604

4 533 340

3 466 904

675 231

637 204

2 990 304

34 565 587

2014

24 104 487

4 333 882

1 410 143

1 098 558

594 000

3 596 055

35 137 125

Accounts receivable are interest-free and have payment terms ranging from 30 to 60 days.
*Other receivables include prepayments, sundry debtors and staff loans.
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11. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2015
R
Cash at bank and on hand

42 956 650

2014
R
38 163 551

Standard Bank Limited has issued guarantees to the value of R35 000.

12. REVALUATION RESERVE
2015
R
Revaluation at the beginning of the year
Transfer to retained earnings
Revaluation at the end of the year

2014
R

40 778 112

40 778 112

(101 139)

-

40 676 973

40 778 112

The revaluation reserve relates to land and buildings only.
The transfer to retained earnings was due to the sale of the land in July 2014 (refer to Note 8).

13. NON-DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
2015
R
(a)

2014
R

Professional development fund surplus

1 288 534

1 345 807

Balance at beginning of period

1 345 807

1 376 201

(57 273)

(30 394)

1 288 534

1 345 807

1 008 200

1 008 200

2 296 734

2 354 007

Transfer to retained earnings
Balance at end of period
The Professional Development Fund was established with surplus funds from hosting the International Society
of Blood Transfusion Congress 2006. The essential purpose of the fund is to support staff in post-graduate
education and training. Income earned for the period was R68,900 (2014: R60,012) and expenses incurred for
the period was R126,173 (2014: R90,406)
(b)

Training development fund
The Training Development fund was established with employer surplus funds received from the Western
Province Blood Transfusion Service Retirement Fund in 2012. The surplus is to be utilised for training and
leadership development of staff.
Total non-distributable reserves

14. PRODUCT LIABILITY RESERVE
The Product Liability Reserve has been established to cover potential uninsurable product liability claims.
Interest earned during the year is capitalised and transferred to the reserve from retained earnings.
2015
R
Opening balance
Transfer from retained earnings
Balance at end of year

2014
R

5 799 412

5 000 000

301 593

799 412

6 101 005

5 799 412
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15. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2015
R

2014
R

Trade payables

24 229 179

22 994 414

Other payables*

5 806 348

8 009 112

30 035 527

31 003 526

Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 day terms.
*Other payables include VAT payable, sundry creditors, accruals and salary creditors.

16. PROVISIONS
2015
R

2014
R

Leave pay provision
At 1 April 2014

11 854 715

10 784 862

Arising during the year

12 044 162

1 069 853

(11 411 732)

-

12 487 145

11 854 715

2 510 167

8 665 693

Arising during the year

10 000 290

2 510 167

Utilised

(2 510 167)

(8 665 693)

At 31 March 2015

10 000 290

2 510 167

TOTAL

22 487 435

14 364 882

Utilised
At 31 March 2015
Salary related accruals
At 1 April 2014

17. FINANCE COSTS
2015
R
Interest paid

2014
R
1 504

7 986

18. TAXATION
No provision has been made for taxation as the income of the Service is exempt in terms of Section 10 (cN) of the Income Tax Act, 1962.

19. COMMITMENTS
2015
R
19.1

2014
R

Capital commitments
Commitments in respect of capital expenditure
- contracted for
- not contracted for

150 880

362 076

18 796 048

14 347 855

18 946 928

14 709 931

The expenditure will be financed from cash generated from normal business operations and covers the replacement and maintenance
of plant, technical equipment, motor vehicles and office furniture & equipment.
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19. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
Due within
1 year
19.2

Due within
2 to 5 years

Commitments in respect of operating leases
2015
Operating leases

2 590 055

7 929 379

2 298 459

5 087 790

2014
Operating leases

The service has entered into operating leases on certain buildings and machinery, with lease terms between three and five years and
inflation based escalation.

20. RETIREMENT BENEFIT INFORMATION
Defined contribution plan:
The Service continues to contribute to the Western Province
Blood Transfusion Service Retirement Fund which is a defined
contribution plan.
The fund is registered under and governed by the Pension
Funds Act, 1956 as amended.
All of the Service’s permanent employees belong to the fund.
The Financial Services Board now requires a fund to analyse
the membership of the Fund in terms of citizenship. The
Fund, together with the Fund benefit administrator, is in the
process of analysing membership.
In terms of Board Notice 59 of 2014, Notice on Valuation
Exemption, a Fund may apply for valuation exemption once
the provisions set out in the Board Notice have been complied
with. This exemption will remain valid until the termination
date of the exemption unless it is withdrawn by the Registrar
as a result of one or more of the provisions not being met.

The Fund applied for valuation exemption with effect from 31
December 2012 and the Registrar approved the application on
1 August 2013. The valuation exemption will terminate on 31
December 2015.
At 31 December 2014, 510 employees belonged to the defined
contribution plan.
Post-retirement medical benefits:
The Service offers medical aid schemes for the benefit of
permanent employees. Members of the defined benefit
retirement plan and certain pensioners are entitled to post
retirement medical benefits consisting of a subsidy of a
portion of the medical aid contributions. At the year-end
there was 1 employee and 3 pensioners who were entitled to
this benefit.
Full actuarial valuations are performed on an annual basis.
The last actuarial valuation was performed as at 31 March
2015, using the projected unit credit valuation method.
Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date:
Discount rate			
8,00%
Health care cost inflation		
7,86%
Average retirement age		
55

The provision for post-retirement health care benefits determined in terms of IAS19 is as follows:
2015
R
Funding liability

2014
R

1 926 000

1 959 000

1 959 000

1 993 000

-

2 000

164 000

146 000

- benefit payments

(197 000)

(182 000)

Balance at the end of the year

1 926 000

1 959 000

-

2 000

164 000

146 000

(197 000)

(182 000)

(33 000)

(34 000)

Reconciliation:
Balance at the beginning of the year
- current service costs
- interest cost

Post-retirement health care benefits expense include:
- current service costs
- interest cost
- benefit payments
Total gain included in personnel costs
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20. RETIREMENT BENEFIT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at 31 March 2015 is as follows:
Central
assumption
7.80%

-1%

1%

Health care cost inflation:
Accrued liability 31 March 2015

1 926 000

1 739 000

2 133 000

-

(9.7%)

10.7%

149 000

134 000

165 000

-

(9.7%)

10.7%

% Change
Current service cost and interest cost 2015/2016
% Change
Central
assumption
8.40%

-1%

1%

Sensitivity results as at 31 March 2014 were:
Accrued liability 31 March 2015

164 000

148 000

182 000

-

(9.8%)

11.0%

% Change
Central
assumption
7.80%

-1%

1%

Health care cost inflation:
Accrued liability 31 March 2015

1 926 000

2 288 000

2 517 000

-

(9.7%)

10.7%

% Change
Central
assumption
8.00%

-1%

1%

Discount rate:
Accrued liability 31 March 2015

1 926 000

2 150 000

1 738 000

-

11.7%

(9.8%)

% Change
Central
assumption
8.00%

-1%

1%

Expected retirement age:
Accrued liability 31 March 2015
% Change

1 926 000

1 926 000

1 926 000

-

0.0%

0.0%
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21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
RISK MANAGEMENT
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk:
interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as
equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments
affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits,
AFS investments and derivative financial instruments.

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Service’s exposure to the risk
of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the
Service’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is
denominated in a foreign currency).
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Service is exposed to credit
risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables)
and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks
and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and
other financial instruments.

Liquidity risk
This is the risk of not meeting contractual liabilities as they
fall due. Management monitors current cash position and
future cash flow requirements on a routine basis.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Service’s exposure to
the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily
to the Service’s long-term debt obligations with floating
interest rates
21.1 Financial Instruments:
The Service’s financial instruments can be summarised as follows:

2015

Financial assets
at fair value
through
profit and loss
R

Loans and
receivables
R

Non- financial
assets
R

Total
R

Financial assets
Trade and other receivables

-

36 428 920

1 348 804

37 777 724

Cash and cash equivalents

-

42 956 650

-

42 956 650

135 327

-

-

135 327

FEC asset

2015

Financial
liabilities
measured at
amortised cost
R

Financial
liabilities at fair
value through
profit and loss
R

Non- financial
liabilities
R

Total
R

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
FEC liability

28 989 262

-

1 106 265

30 095 527

-

-

-

-
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21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
21.1 Financial Instruments (CONTINUED):

2014

Financial assets
at fair value
through
profit and loss
R

Loans and
receivables
R

Non- financial
assets
R

Total
R

Financial assets
Trade and other receivables

-

36 646 210

1 510 921

38 157 131

Cash and cash equivalents

-

38 163 551

-

38 163 551

FEC asset

-

-

-

-

2014

Financial
liabilities
measured at
amortised cost
R

Financial
liabilities at fair
value through
profit and loss
R

Non- financial
liabilities
R

Total
R

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
FEC liability

29 476 305

-

1 527 221

31 003 526

1 116 066

-

-

1 116 066

21.2 Credit risk management:
CATEGORY

RISK
Low
R

Medium
R

High
R

Total
R

2015
Hospitals

12 094 492

-

-

12 094 492

Medical aids

19 527 201

-

-

19 527 201

Private patients

-

-

1 323 389

1 323 389

Workman’s compensation claims

-

1 620 505

-

1 620 505

Deposits paid to suppliers

1 348 804

-

-

1 348 804

Other receivables

1 863 333

-

-

1 863 333

34 833 830

1 620 505

1 323 389

37 777 724

Hospitals

16 827 990

-

-

16 827 990

Medical aids

15 550 496

-

-

15 550 496

Private patients

-

-

1 388 739

1 388 739

Workman’s compensation claims

-

1 262 138

-

1 262 138

Estates

-

78 634

-

78 634

Road accident fund

-

29 126

-

29 126

Deposits paid to suppliers

1 510 921

-

-

1 510 921

Other receivables

1 509 087

-

-

1 509 087

35 398 494

1 369 898

1 388 739

38 157 131

Total
2014

Total
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21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
21.3 INTEREST RATE RISK:
2015
R
The Service’s exposure to interest rate risk can be quantified as follows:
Cash and bank balance exposed to interest rate risk
Income statement effect of interest rate risk to above balance:
- 1% increase in interest rates

429 567

- 1% decrease in interest rates

(429 567)

Interest rates are expected to increase between 0.5% - 1% in the next financial year.
2014
R
The Service’s exposure to interest rate risk can be quantified as follows:

36 163 551

Cash and bank balance exposed to interest rate risk
Income statement effect of interest rate risk to above balance:
- 1% increase in interest rates

381 636

- 1% decrease in interest rates

(381 636)

Interest rates are expected to increase between 0.5% - 1% in the next financial year.
21.4 Liquidity Risk:
Year 1
R

Year 1 - 5
R

Over 5 years
R

Total
R

2015
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables

36 428 920

-

-

36 428 920

Cash and cash equivalents

42 956 650

-

-

42 956 650

135 327

-

-

135 327

28 929 262

-

-

28 929 262

-

-

-

-

Trade and other receivables

36 646 210

-

-

36 646 210

Cash and cash equivalents

38 163 551

-

-

38 163 551

-

-

-

-

29 476 305

-

-

29 476 305

1 116 066

-

-

1 116 066

FEC asset
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
FEC liability
2014
Financial assets

FEC asset
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
FEC liability
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21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
21.5 Foreign currency risk:
2015
Fair value of FEC asset/(liability) at year end

2014
135 327

(1 116 066)

Current liabilities
2015: USD 1 011 021

12 430 305

2014: USD 1 347 092

14 408 500

Exchange rates at 31 March used for conversion of foreign items were:
USD

12.948

10.696

The spot rate on 31 March was used to revalue foreign currency balances at year end.
At 31 March 2015, if the currency had weakened/strengthened by 10% against the US dollar with all other variables held constant,
pre-tax profit for the year would have been R1 243 031 higher/lower (2014: R1 440 850) mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains or
losses on translation of US dollar denominated financial liabilities at fair value measured to amortised cost.
21.6 price risk:
The Service is not exposed to price risk.

22. correction of error
During the year it was noted that the work in progress and finished goods inventory costing method was not in line with IFRS requirements.
As a result the inventories relating to in-house produced products on hand at year end were overstated in prior periods. This error has
been corrected retrospectively.
The error has been corrected by restating each of the affected financial statement line items for the period periods, as follows:
2014
R

2013
R

Impact on equity (decrease in equity)
Inventory

(6 234 125)

(6 032 294)

Retained earnings

(6 234 125)

6 032 294

-

-

Total assets
Impact on statement of profit or loss (decrease in profit)
Cost of sales

(201 831)

Net impact on profit for the year

(201 831)
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23. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Salaries
R

Contributions to
Retirement Fund
R

Medical Aid
R

Bonuses
R

Total
R

Executive Directors
2015
Dr G Bellairs

1 625 999

195 287

41 607

110 863

1 973 756

Ms N du Toit

1 344 196

158 158

25 940

89 785

1 618 079

2 970 195

353 445

67 547

200 648

3 591 835

Dr G Bellairs

1 534 737

182 920

37 006

-

1 754 664

Ms N du Toit

1 263 190

148 142

24 483

-

1 435 815

2 797 927

331 062

61 489

-

3 190 479

2014

2015
R

2014
R

Non-Executive Directors’ Fees
Dr A Bird

12 509

14 417

Adv D Bosman

13 568

12 559

Mr M Burton

20 329

19 868

Dr F Essop

8 534

12 559

Mr B Figaji

16 419

19 928

Mr N Parker

16 419

14 477

Mr D Ndebele

16 419

13 558

Mr R Ramsbottom

15 823

14 417

Mr P Slack

18 695

18 558

Dr E Steyn

-

11 570

6 160

-

144 875

151 911

Ms A Huggett
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24. FAIR VALUE INFORMATION
FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY:
Level 1
Quoted unadjusted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the company can access at measurement date.
Level 2
Inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly.
Level 3
Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
Recurring fair value measurements – Level 3

2015
R

Note

2014
R

Assets
Beaconvale – erven 12364, 12365 and 12367

8

11 206 357

11 312 284

Pinelands – erven 24179

8

31 522 240

31 541 394

Paarl – erven 15375

8

3 293 786

3 296 978

George – Sections 4, 9, 10 and 11 of Sectional Plan No 55217/93

8

2 507 010

2 508 606

Worcester – Erf 4326

8

3 846 636

3 849 827

52 376 027

52 509 089

Depreciation
R

Closing balance
at fair value
R

Reconciliation of recurring fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:
Opening
balance at fair
value
R

Additions
R

Revaluation
R

Disposals
R

2015
Beaconvale

11 312 284

-

-

(101 139)

(4 788)

11 206 357

Pinelands

31 541 394

-

-

-

(19 154)

31 522 240

Paarl

3 296 978

-

-

-

(3 192)

3 293 786

George

2 508 606

-

-

-

(1 596)

2 507 010

Worcester

3 849 827

-

-

-

(3 193)

3 846 635

52 509 089

-

-

(101 139)

(31 923)

52 376 027

Beaconvale

11 317 072

-

-

-

(4 788)

11 312 284

Pinelands

31 560 548

-

-

-

(19 154)

31 541 394

Paarl

3 300 170

-

-

-

(3 192)

3 296 978

George

2 510 203

-

-

-

(1 596)

2 508 606

Worcester

3 853 019

-

-

-

(3 193)

3 849 827

52 541 012

-

-

-

(31 923)

52 509 089

2014

Information about valuation techniques and inputs used to derive level 3 fair values.
Owner-Occupied Property – Owner occupied property held at revalued amount.
Owner Occupied Property - commercial property for leasing is determined applying a comparable sales method, using price per square
metre for buildings, gross rentals in the market and applying a capitalisation rate. These are all derived from observable market data.
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24. FAIR VALUE INFORMATION (continued)

Weighted Average range
of probabilities
High

Low

Beaconvale
Price per square metre – Rands

1 250

1 000

40

29

11.5%

8.5%

-

-

70

40

10.5%

8%

-

-

65

55

11%

9%

-

-

75

45

10.5%

8%

-

-

85

45

11%

9%

Rental Achievable per square metre – Rands
Capitalisation Rate
Pinelands
Price per square metre – Rands
Rental Achievable per square metre – Rands
Capitalisation Rate
Paarl
Price per square metre – Rands
Rental Achievable per square metre – Rands
Capitalisation Rate
George
Price per square metre – Rands
Rental Achievable per square metre – Rands
Capitalisation Rate
Worcester
Price per square metre – Rands
Rental Achievable per square metre – Rands
Capitalisation Rate

The higher the price per square metre, the higher the fair value.
It is unlikely that a variation in any input by a reasonably possible alternative amount will significantly impact the valuation.

25. RESTATEMENT
In the current year, the Service reclassified specific income and expense line items to improve the manner in which costs are managed. As
a result of these adjustments in the current period, to maintain comparability the Service has adjusted the related prior year line items
to align with those disclosed in the current period. The overall effect of the restatement has not impacted the prior year net surplus.
Before
restatement
R

After
restatement
R

Movement
R

Change in statement of comprehensive income
Sundry income

806 381

836 407

30 026

1 930 566

1 670 627

(259 940)

-

259 940

259 940

Personnel costs

136 246 825

132 745 612

3 501 213

Administration

21 984 363

24 446 900

(2 462 537)

Product costs

32 037 004

33 105 706

(1 068 702)

Bank deposits
Product liability income

Prior period error

-
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